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Radstone Technology PLC

Directors’ Report
for the nine months ended 31 December 2000

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group are the design of digital electrontc equipment for sale, the design and manufacture of real-time
data acquusitton and analogue to digital conversion products for the embedded sensor processing market, the design and
manufacture of image processors and video trachers for the embedded computing market, and the surface-mount assembly of
electronic sub-systems

Business review

{a) Overview

On 28 November 2006, Radstone Technology PLC was acquired by GE Fanuc Embedded Systems, Inc In order to have a co-
terminous financial year-end with GE Fanuc Embedded Systems, the Group year-end has been changed from 31 March to
31 December, and consequently these financial statements are for a nine month reporting period

{b) Current Markets

This has been a busy peniod for the Group with new orders received totalling £61 4m (year ended March 2006 £62 im), and a
closing order book for future delivery of £124 1m (March 2006 £%4 1m)

(¢) Operational Performance

Revenue for the nine month penod amounted to £31 7m, compared to £54 9m for the previous twelve month accounting period,
while the operating loss for the nine month penod amounted to £8 2m, compared to an operating profit of £5 95m for the previous
twelve month accounting penod As in previous years, Group revenue 1s heavily weighted towards the first quarter of the calendar
year Therefore, the results for the nine month peniod are not therefore directly comparable with the results for the previous twetve
month peried

(d) Key Performance Indicators

As noted 1n Operattonal Performance above, Group revenue 1s heavily weighted towards the first quarter of a calendar year resulling
tn a 42 3% fall n reported tumover for the mine month pernod compared to last year Costs, however, are less affected by seasonality
and more fixed 1n nature, which has resulted 1 a 30 8% reduction in line with the shorter accounting penod The impact on gross
prefit margm s a reduction to 35 4% compared to 46 2% last year

(e} Future Prospects
The worldwide military market continues to provide a sohid and growing base for the strategte development of the Group

Furthermore, the future prospects for the company have been assured following the takeover by GE Fanuc Embedded Systems, Inc,
which wall not only provide new markets but also provide long term funding for the Group

(f) Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's operations expose 11 1o a number of financial nsks including foreign currency nsh, credit nisk, interest rate nsk and
hquidity nsk  The nisks are managed in accordance with Board approved objectives, policies and authorities

Foreign exchange nsk

The Group operates internatronally and 15 subject to foreign exchange nsks on fuure commercial transactions and net investments
in foreign subsidhanies  The pnincipal exposures anse wath respect to the US dollar / Pound sterling exchange rate

To mitigate nshs associated with future commercial transactions, the Group policy 15 to hedge known and certain forecast
transaction exposures based on historical expenence and projections  The Group policy during the penod was to hedge at least
80% of the next six months anticipated exposure and can hedge up to eighteen months ahead

The Group has used berrowings denominated 1n the relevant currencies to hedge its investment 1n1ts US and Canadian companies
Following its acquisiion by GE Fanuc Embedded Systems, Inc, the Group 1s reviewing its hedging policies Since the period end,

the foreign currency loans have been repaid and the bulk of the currency derivative portfoho has been sold back to the counterparty
banks




Radstone Technology PLC

Directors’ Report
for the nine months ended 31 December 2006

Business Review (continued)

{f) Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Credit nisk

The Group's principal financial assets are bank balances, cash and trade and other receivables  The Group's credit nisk 1s pnmanly
attnbutable to 1ts trade receivables  The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowance for doubtful recervables,
esimated by the Group's management based on pnor expenience and their assessment of the current economic environment

Policies are matntained to ensure the Group makes sales to customers with an appropriate credit listory  Letters of credst or other
appropriate instruments are put in place to reduce credit nsh where considered necessary

The credit nsk on hiquid funds and denivative financial imstruments 15 limiied because the counterparties are banks with high credst
ratings assigned by intemational credit-raling agencies

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and
customers

Interest rate risk

The Group had borrowings 1ssued at floating rates of interest, exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate nish

The Group mitigated interest rate nshs through the use of nterest rate swaps which had the cconomic effect of converting the
floating rate borrowings into fixed rate borrowings

Surplus funds are placed on short term deposit  These deposits have floating rates of nterest, and thus there 15 some modest
exposure to interest rates

Lequedity risk

I'he Group has a strong cash flow and where practicable the funds generated by operating companies are managed on a regional
basis  For short-term working capital purposes, most operating companies utilise local banhing facilities wathin an overall Group
arrangement

The Group utilises where necessary overdrafl facilities for short-term flexibility and a revolving credit facihty  The Group's policy
1s to mamtaim undrawn committed borrowing facilities 1 order 1o provide flexability 1n the management of the Group's hquidaty

Financial instruments

For cash, recervables and short term borrowings the fair value of the financiat instruments approximates to their book value due to
the short matunity penods of these financial instruments  On receivables allowances are made within the book value for credit risk
For medium and long term borrowings and other financial habilities the fair value 1s based on market values or, where not available,
on discounting future cash flows at prevailing marhet rates  The fair values of the Group's currency and interest rate derivatives are
establtshed using valuation techniques, primarily discounting cash flows, based on assumpttons that are supported by observable
marhet prices or mtes

Currency Denvatives

The Group has utilised cumrency dervatives to hedge significant future transactions and cash flows  The Group 1s a panty to a
vaniety of foreign currency forward contracts and options in the management of its exchange rate exposures  The instruments
purchased are primanly denominated in the currencies of the Group's pnncipal markets

Interest rate swaps

The Group has used a combiation of bullet and amortising tnierest rate and cross-currency swaps o manage 11s exposure to interest
rate movements on its bank borrowings  The swaps, denomuinated in sterling, US dollars and Canadian dollars, have been entered
into to achieve an appropnate mix of fixed and floating rate exposure and will mature over the next eight years

Results and dividends

The consohdated trading results and year end financial position are shown n the financial statements on pages 8 to $1 The directors
do not recommend payrnent of a dividend for the pened (March 2006 ntenm dividend of 1 05p and fina! dividend of 3 15p)




Radstone Technology PLC

Directors’ Report
for the nine months ended 31 December 2006

Directors

I'he directors of the company were as follows

Mr J L Permn
Mr P J Cavill

Mr M S W Lee was appointed on 18 September 2006

Mr M Hardt was appointed on 28 November 2006

Mr M Whittenburg was appointed on 28 November 2006
Mrs M Sylvester was appointed on 28 November 2006
Mr R McKeel was appointed on 28 November 2006

Mr K J Boyd resigned effective from 4 August 2006

Mr R J Williams reuired effective from 7 September 2006, was reappomted on 7 September 2006 and resigned effective from
5 December 2006

Mr M A W Baggott resigned effective from 5 December 2006

Mr S J Day resigned effective from 5 December 2006

Mr J L Petrin retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-clection

The Company's Articles of Associatton stipulate that a director appomted to the Board since the tast Annual General Meeting may
only hold office until the dissolution of the next Annual General Meeting after thewr appointment, unless they are re-appointed
duning the meeting Mr M § W Lee, Mr M Hardt, Mr M Whittenburg, Mrs M Sylvester and Mr R McKeel having been appointed
since the last Annual General Meeting retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appoimntment as directors

Donations

The Group made charitable donations dunng the period amounting to £2,799 (March 2006 £2,076} No political donations were
made

Employment policies

The Group informs and consults regularly with employees on matters affecting their mterests with a view to achieying a common
awareness of the financial and economic factors affecting its performance The views expressed by employees have been taken mto
account when making decisions where appropniate

The Group 1s an equal opperiunities employer and us policies for the recruitment, traimng, career development and promotion of
employees are based on the relevant ments and abilities of the individuals concerned It recogmises its responsibilities towards the
disabled and gives full and far consideration to applications for employment from them and, so far as particular disabilities permut,
will give continued employment to any existing employee who becomes disabled 1t 1s the policy of the Group that the training,
career development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be 1dentical to that of other employees

Research and development

The Group recognises the importance of nmvesting n research and development programmes in order to maintam technical and
commercial competitiveness  Expenditure 1n the nine months ended 31 December 2006 on research and development (excluding
amortisation of intangibles ansing from acquisitions) amounted to £7,825,000 (March 2006 £7,662,000), ot winch £nid (March
2006 nil) was capitalised in accordance with the Group accounting policy (see note 2 to the financial statements)

Supplier payment policy

The Group does not follow a code or standard payment practice Payment terms are agreed on an individual suppher basis and
suppliers are made aware of these terms at the time that contracts or agreements are signed  This policy apphes to all payments to
creditors for revenue and capital supphes of goods and services without exception

The Group’s average creditor payment peniod at 31 December 2006 was 104 days (March 2006 73 days) and the Company's 41
days (March 2006 24 days)

Fmancial instruments

Notes 2 and 25 of the Notes to the Financial Statements contain disclosures relating to the use of financial mstruments




Radstone Technology PLC

Directors’ Report
for the nine months ended 31 December 2006

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements The directors are required to preparce
financial statements for the Group n accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and have also clected to
prepare financial statements for the Company in accordance with IFRSs Company law requires the directors to prepare such
financial statements 1n accordance with IFRSs, the Cornpanies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the [AS Regulation

international Accounting Standard | requires that financial statements present fairly for each financial penod the Company's
financial position, financial performance and cash flows  This requires the faithful representation of the eftects of transactions,
other evernts and conditions tn accordance with the defimihons and recognition cnitena for assets, habilities, income and expenses set
oui 1n the Intemational Accounting Standards Board's 'Framewuork for the preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements'  In
virtually all circumstances, a fair presentation will be achieved by comphiance wath all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards

Dhrectors are also requtred to

. properly sclect and consistently apply accounting policies,

. present information, including accounting policies, n a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable tnformation,

. provide additional disclosures when comphance with the specific requirements in [FRSs as adopted by the EU 15 insufficient

to enable users to undersiand the impact of particular transactions, other events and condittons on the entity's financiat
posiion and financial performance,

. prepare the accounts on a going concern basis unless, having assessed the ability of the Company to continue as a going
concern, management either mtends to liquidate the entity or to cease trading, or have no realistic altemmative but to do so

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial positon of the Company, for safeguarding the assets, for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other iregulanties and for the preparation of financial statements which comply with the requitements of the Companies Act
1985

The directors are responsible for the mawntenance and ntegrity of corporate and financial information of the Company website
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
n other junisdictions

Disclosure of information to auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there 1s no
relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that he cught to
have taken as a director to mahe himself aware of any relevant information and 1o establish that the company’s auditors are aware of
that information

Auditors
In the case of ¢ach of the persons who are directors of the Group and the Company at that date when this report was approved

- so far as each of the directors 15 aware, there 15 no relevant audst information (as defined in the Companies Act 1983) of which
the Group and the Company’s auditors are unaware, and

- each of the diwectors has tahen all the steps necessary to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Group and the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

On 1 February 2007 Deloitte, Chartered Accountanis, resigned as auditors of the company and KPMG Audit Ple were appotnied to
fill the vacancy A resolution to re-appotnt KPMG Audt Ple will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

By order of the Board

MOV AN
Nov Novakovic

Secretary
12 June 2007




KPMG Audit Plc

Altrus House

One North Fourth Street
Milton Keynes

MKQ INE

Umited Kingdom

Report of the independent auditors’ to the members of Radstone
Technology PLC

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (the * fingncial statements™) of Radstone Technology PLC for
the period ended 31 December 2006 which compnse the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated and parent company
Batance Sheets, the Consolidated and parent company Cash Flow Statement, the Consohdated and parent company Statements of
Recogmised Income and Expense and the related notes  These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies
set out theretn

This report 1s made solcly to the company’s members, as a body, i accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matlers we are required to state to them n
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this repon, or for the opimons we
have formed

Respective responsibibities of directors and avditors

The directors” responstbilities for prepanng the Darectors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with apphcable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU are set out in the Statement of Directors’
Responstbitities on page 6

Our responsibility 15 to audit the financial statements i accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and [retand)

We report to you our opinton as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opimon the intormation given in the Directors”
Report ts consistent with the financial statements

In addition we report to you 1f, 1n our epimion, the company has not hept proper accounting records, 1f we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and
other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the Directors’ Repont and consider the implications for our report 1t we become aware of any apparent misstatements within
it

Basis of audit opimion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internattonal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices
Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial
statements It also includes an assessment of the stgnificant estimates and judgments made by the directors 1n the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and company’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtarn all the information and explanations which we considered necessary 1n order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other wregulanty or emmor  In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information n the financial statements

Opimon
In our oprmion

e the group financial statements give a true and fair view, i accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the EU, of the state of the
group’s affairs as at 31 December 2006 and of 1ts loss for the penod then ended,

. the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU as applied
tn accordance with the provisions of the Compantes Act 1985, of the siate of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December
2006,

. the financial statements have been properly prepared n accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and

. the information given 1n the Dhrectors’ Report 15 consistent with the financial statements

KPMG Audit Plc \(PM & n J.‘; L PL ¢ 12 June 2007
v

Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor




Radstone Technology PLC

Consolidated Income Statement

for the nine month period ended 31 December 2006

Notes 9 months ended 12 months ended
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
£000 £000
Continwing operations
Revenue 4 31,670 54,926
Cost of sales (20, 466) {29,564)
Gross profit 11,204 25,362
Distnbution costs {3,966) (6,745)
Development costs
- Product development {7,825) (7.662)
- Amortisation of intangbles ansing
from acquisitions (851) (1,050)
(8.676) (8,712}
Administrative expenses £6.719) £3,991)
Operating (loss)/profit before costs of id defence (4,340) 5,914
Costs of bid detence (3.817) -
Operating (loss)/profit 6 (8,157) 5914
Investment revenue 10 131 138
Ftnance income
- Gatns on fair value movement on financial instruments 2477 -
Finance costs
- Borrowing costs {850) (1,079)
- Losses on fair value movement on financial
instruments - (565)
- Retirement benefit scheme finance
charges (299} (424)
1 (1,149) {2,068)
{Loss) profit before tax {6,998) 3,984
Tax 12 1,243 {699)
{Loss)/profit for the period from continming operations
attnbutable to equity holders of the parent (5,755) 3,285




Radstone Technology PLC

Balance Sheets
at 31 December 2006

Group

Company

Notes 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2006 2006 2006 2006
£°000 £7000 £000 £000
Mon-current assets
Goodwill 14 24,728 24,741 - -
[ntangible assets ansing from acquisibions 15 5345 6,233 - -
Other intangtble assets 15 7 22 7 22
Property, plant and equipment 16 16,034 16,315 10,613 10,758
Investment 1n subsidiaries 17 - - 37,550 37,550
Amounts owed by subsidianes - - 151 151
Deferred tax pssets 26 2,894 2. 844 - -
49,008 30,153 48,321 48,481
Current assets
Inventories 18 16,735 12,284 - -
Trade and other recenables 20 12,350 23,380 17,792 4,199
Tax receivable 1,837 849 - -
Denvative financial instruments 1,777 213 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 21 3.826 2,188 1,882 11,878
36,525 38914 19,674 16,177
Total assets 85,533 89,069 67,995 64,658
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 22 12,229 10,470 36 4679
Tax habilities 534 1,§03 - -
Obligations under finance leases 23 173 192 - -
Denvative financial instruments 25 - 547 - -
Banh overdrafts and loans 24 6,777 4812 12,068 4,007
19713 17,124 15,689 8.686
Non-current Liabilities
Bank loans 24 11,702 15,18% 11,520 14,966
Retirement benefit obligations 33 9,647 9,479 - -
Deferred tax habilities 26 1,911 2,179 653 713
Obhgations under finance leases 23 79 219 - -
23,339 27,066 12,173 15,679
Eotal habities 43,052 44,190 27.862 24,365
Net assets 42,481___ 44,879 40,133 40,293
Equity
Share capntal 27 3,960 3,792 3,960 3,792
Share premiurn account 29 %91 25,152 23,911 25,152
Own shares 29 - (753) - (753)
Orher reserve 29 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388
Hedging and translation reserves 29 283 673 - -
Retained earnings 29 7.939 14,627 5.874 10,714
Total equity. 42,481 44 879 40,133 40,293

The finaneial statements on pages 8 10 51 were approved by the board of drrectors on 12 June 2007 and were st

%
J L Pernin
Dhrector

p——————

MSW Lee
Director

ed on its behalf by




Radstone Technology PLC

Cash Flow Statements

for the nine month period ended 31 December 2006

Group Company
Notes 9 months 12 months 9 months 12 months
ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31
December March December March
2006 2006 2006 2006
£'000 £7000 £000 £000
Net eash from gperating activities 31 945 1,601 {19.350) 1.841
Investing activities
Interest received 131 138 58 724
Proceeds on disposal of property plant
and eguipment 37 1 - -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {1,433) (1,566) - 2)
Purchases of trade and assets - (3813 - -
Ivet cash (used in)from insesting activities (1,265) (1,808) 58 722
Financing activaties
Dividends paid 13 (956) (1,137) - (1,137
Issue of share capital 27 3,928 87 3,928 87
Purchase of own shares under Employee
Incentive Schemes 30 (71) (409) (71) (409)
Disposal of own shares under Employee
Incentive Schemes 30 824 - 824 -
Repayments of borrowings 24 (1,523) (877 - -
Repayments ot obligations under finance leases 23 (159 (259) - -
ew bank 1 24 - 1,358 4,615 -
Net cash from/{used in) financing activitres 2,043 (1,237 9,296 {1.459)
Net tncrease/(decrease) in cash and bank overdrafis 1,723 (1,444) (9,996) 1,104
Cash and bank overdrafis at start of period 2,188 3,766 11,878 10,774
Effect of foretgn exchange rate changes (85) (134 - -
Cash and bank overdrafis at end of peniod 21 3,826 2,188 1,882 _11.878
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Radstone Technology PLC

Statements of Recognised Income and Expense
for the nine month period ended 31 December 2006

Gronp Company
Notes 9 months 12 months 9 months 12 months
ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31
December March December March
2006 2006 2006 2006
£°000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Adoption of LAS 32/3%
Fatr value of financial instruments at
1 Apru 2005 25 - 957 - -
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations (348) 464 - -
Actuanial losses on defined benefit
pension schemes 33 (449) {197 - -
Tax on items taken directly to equity 12 (15) (18) - -
Net income/{expense) recogmsed directly 1n equity (812) 1,146 - -
Transferred to profit or loss on cash flow hedges 25 (66) (726) - -
Tax on items wransferred trom equity 12 20 218 - -
(LossVprofit for the period {3.758) 3285 (4,142) 3,502
Total recognised income and expense
for the penod atinbutable to equity holders
_of the parent 29 {6,613} 3,923 (4,142} 3,502

11




Radstone Technology PLC

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the nine month period ended 31 December 2006

1 General information

Radstone Technology PLC 1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Compames Act 1985 The nature of the
Group's operations and 1ts principal activities are set out in note 5 and in the Drectors’ Report

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the pnmary economic environment in
which the Group operates  Foreign operations are included in accordance with the pohicies set out n note 2

Al the date of authorisation ot these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations, which have not been applied
in these financial statements, were in 1ssue but not yet effective

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments [Disclosures, and the related amendments to 1AS 1 on capatal disclosures
IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Denvatives

IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporiing and Impairment

IFRIC 11 /ITRS 2  Group and ircasury share transacttons
1AS 1 Amendment to eriginal 1AS Caputal Disclosures

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future pertods will have no matenial impact on the
financial statements of the Group except for additional disclosures on capital and financial imstruments when the refevant standards
come into effect for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2007

2  Significant accounting policies

{(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)  The financial
statements have also been prepared mn accordance with [FRS adopted for use i the European Union and therefore comply with
Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulations

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certan properties and
financial nstruments  The principal accounting policies adopted are sei out below

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consohdated tinancial statements incorporate the financial statements of Radstone Technology PLC (‘the Company”) and its
subsidiary undertahings (together ‘the Group’)

A subsidiary 1s a company controlled directly or indirectly by the Company Contrel 1s achieved where the Company has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of the investee entity so as to obtawmn benefits from its activities

On acquisttion, the assets and habilities and contingent hiabihties of a subsidiary are measured at their fair values at the date of
acquisition  Any excess of the cost of acquisttion over the farr values of the 1dentifiable net assets acquired 1s recognised as
goodwill  Any deficiency 1n the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s credited to the

profit and loss account n the penod of acquisition

The results of subsidiary undertabings acquired or disposed of in the mne month penod are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date of acquisition er up 1o the date of disposal

All wntra-Group transactions, balances, tncome and expenses are ehminated on consolidation

12




Radstone Technology PLC

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the nine month period ended 31 December 2006

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group s interest in the fair value of the
idenufiable assets and habilities of a subsidiary a1 the date of acquisituon  Goodwll ansing on acquisitions 1s capitahised and
subject to impairment review, both annually and when there are indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable  Any
impatrments are recogmsed immedtately in the income statement and are not subsequently reversed

Goodwill ansing on acquisstions pnor to | Apnil 2004 (the date of transition to IFRSs) has been retained at the previous UK GAAP
amounts subject to being tested for impairment at that date  Goodwill wnitten off to reserves under UK GAAP por to 1998 has not
been remnstated and 15 not included 1in determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal

(d) Revenue recogmtion

Revenue 1s measured at the faur value of the consideration reccived or recervable and represents amounts recervable for goods and
services provided 1n the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes

Sales are recognised when the sigmficant nsk and rewards of ownership of goods are transferred to the customer

Revenue from long-term contracts 1s recognised 1n accordance with the Group’s accounting policy (see below)

(e) Long-term contracts

Where the outcome of a long-term contract can be estimated rehably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date  This 15 normally measured by the proportion that contract costs
tncurred tor work performed to date bear to the estmated total contract costs, except where this would not be representative of the
stage of completion Vanations in contract worh, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have been
agreed with the customer

Where the outcome of a long-term contract cannot be esumated reliably, contract revenue 18 recogmised to the extent of contract
costs mcurred that it 1s probable will be recoverable Contract costs are recogrised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred

When 1l 1s probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss 15 recogrised as an expense
immediatety

{f) Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are recogrused as assets of the Group at thewr fair value or, 1f lower, at the present value of the
mimmum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease The corresponding hability to the lessor is included in the
balance sheet as a finance lease obligation Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hability Finance charges are charged directly
against income 1 proportion to the reducing capital element outstanding

Operating lease rentals are charged to income as incurred dunng the term of the relevant lease

(g) Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date Non-monetary assets and habilities camed at fair value that are denomnated m foreign currencies
are tmnslated at the rates prevaihing at the date when the fair value was determuned Gains and tosses ansing on retranslation are
included 1n net profit or loss for the penod, except for exchange differences ansing on non-monetary assets and habiities where the
changes in fair value are recogrised directly n equity

In order to hedge 11s exposure to ceriain foreign exchange nisks, the Group enters into forward contracts and options (see below for
details of the Group's accounting policies in respect of such denvative financial instruments)

13




Radstone Technology PLC

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the nine month period ended 31 December 2006

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Foreign currenctes (continued)

On consoltdation, the assets and liabilittes of the Group’s overscas operations are translated 1nto sterling, which 1s the functional
currency of the Company and the presentation currency for the consolidated financeal statements, at exchange rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period unless exchange rates
fluctuate ssigmificantly tn which case the weighted average exchange rate 15 used  Exchange differences ansing from the re-
translation of the opening balance sheets and results are classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s translation reserve  Such
translation difterences are recognised as income or expenses in the penod 1n which the operation 15 disposed of

Goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a forergn entity are treated as assets and hiabihities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate I'he Group has elected to treat goodwill and farr value adjustments ansing on acquisitions
before the date of transition to IFRS as sterling-denominated assets and hiabilities

{h) Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due Payments made to state-
managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contnbution schemes where the Groep’s obhigations
under the schemes are equivalent to those ansing n a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme

For defined benefit (final salary} schemes, the defined benefit obligation 1s calculated annually by independent actuanies using the
projected unit credit method The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligauon less the fair value of scheme assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses
and past service costs  Actuarial gams and losses are recognised 1n equity as an item within the statement of recogmised income and
expense

(n) Taxation
The tax expense represents Lthe sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently recoverable i1s based on taxable loss for the nine month period Taxable loss differs from net loss as reported in the
income statement because 1t excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
tems that are never taxable or deductible The Group’s izbility tor current tax ts calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 15 the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilihes 1n
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 15 accounted for using the
balance sheet hability method Deferred tax Liabilities are generzlly recogrised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it 15 probable that taxable profits wall be avallable against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised Such assets and liabihities are not recognised f the temporary difference anses from goodwali or from the
nitial recognition (other than 1n a business combination) of other assets and habilittes m a transaction that affects neither the tax
profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax habiliies are recogmsed for taxable temporary differences ansing on mnvestments i subsidianes except where the
Group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 15 probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future

The carrymg amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer
prebable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply mn the period when the hability 15 scttled or the asset 15 realised
Deferred tax 1s charged or credited 1n the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to eqguity, m
which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with 1n equity

Deferred tax assets and liabiiities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets aganst current tax

liabilities and when they relate to mcome tax levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends o settle 1ts current tax
assets and habilities on a net basis
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Radstone Technology PLC

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the nine month period ended 31 December 2006

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(J)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at ongmal histoncal cost, net of depreciation and any provision for smpairment

Depreciation 15 charged so as to wnte off the cost of assets, less esumated residual value, on a siraight-ine basis over their estimated
useful fives tn accordance with the table below
Estimated useful
economic hfe

Freehold buildings 45 - 50 years
Plant and machmery 3 - 10 years
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 3 - 10 years

Frechold land 15 not depreciated

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter,
over the term of the relevant lease

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 1s determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and 15 recognised in income

(k) Research and development

Expenditure on research activities 1s recognised as an expense in the period in which 1t 1s incurred

An nternally generated intangible asset ansing from development activities 15 recogmsed only if an asset 15 created that can be
identified, 1t 15 probable that the asset created will generate tuture economic benctit and the development cost of the asset can be
meastred reliably

Intemnally generated mtangible assets are amorised on a straight-line basis over ther useful hves Where no intemnally generated
mntangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure 1s recogmsed as an expense in the penod in which 1t 1s incurred
.

()] Intangible assets

(1) Entangible assets ansing from acquisitions

For acquisiions of businesses after 1 April 2004, the Group recogmses separately from goodwill intangible assets provided they are
separate or anse from contractual or other legal nghts and their fair value can be measured reliably  The intangible assets are
recognised at fair value and amortised on a straight-line basis over thetr remaining useful hives, being 5 to 10 years

() Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets, representing manufacturing hicences, are amortised over 3 years, esttmated to be the period in which the
individua! products to which they relate are to be sold  Where, in the directors” opinion, there has been an impairment in the value
of intangible assets, this 1 charged to the income statement 1n the penod in which the impairment occurs

(m) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and mntangible assets to determine whether there
1s any mdication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset 18 estimated 1n order to determine the extent of the tmpairment loss Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
mdependent from other assets, the Group esmates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs
An intangible asset wath an indefimite useful life 1s tested for impairment annually and whenever there 1s an indication that the asset
may be impaired
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the nine month period ended 31 December 2006

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Imparwrment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the hugher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use In assessing value in use, the estmated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value  [If the recoverable amount of an asset 1s esimated to be less than its camrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced to 1ts recoverable amount An impairment loss 15 recogmised as an expense tmmediately

Where an mpamrment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset 1s increased to the revised estimate ol 1ts
recoverable amount, but so that the wncreased carrymg amount does not exceed the camying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recogmised for the asset i prior years A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised as
income immediately

(n) Inventories

Inventortes are stated at the lower of cost (determined on a first-in, first-out basis and including transport and handling costs) and
net reahisable value, less payments on account  Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price after allowing for the costs
of realisation and, where appropnate, the cost of conversion from their existing state mnto a fimshed conditron  Provision 15 made
where necessary for obsolete, slow moving or defective inventories

{0) Fimmancial Instruments

Imancial assets and financial hiabihties are recogmsed n the balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument

(0] Trade recervables

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost fess provision
for impairment  Appropnate allowances for esumated trrecoverable amounts are recogmised 1n the mcome statement when there 1s
objective evidence that the asset 1s impaired The allowance recognised 15 measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the estimated future cash flows discounted where appropnate

n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnise cash in-hand, call deposits and bank overdratts, where there 15 night of set off  Bank overdrafls
are presented as current habilities to the extent there 1s no nght of offset with cash balances

{tes} Financial habihties and equity

Financial habilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered mto
An equtty instrument 15 any contract that evidences a residual interest 1n the assets of the group afier deducting all of its habilities

(1v) Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafis are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct costs of 1ssue  Finance charges,
including premiums payable on settlement or redemplion and direct costs of 1ssue, are accounted for, on an accruals basis, in the
Income statement using the effective interest rate method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument 1o the extent that
they are not settled 1n the penied in which they anse

v) Trade payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fzir value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method

(v1) Dervative financial instruments and hedge accounbing

The Group uses denvative financial instruments to hedge 1ts exposure to foreign currency and interest rate nsk Details of the
financial nsks faced by the Group and the use of financial instruments to mitigate them are outhned in note 25 The Group does not
use dertvative financial instruments for speculative purposes
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the nine month period ended 31 December 2006

2 Significant accounting policies

(o) Fmancal Instruments (continued)

(1) Derrvative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Dentvative financial instruments are recogmsed as assets and habilities at fair value on the date the denvative contract 1s entered into
and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at each balance sheet date  Changes in the fair values of denvative financial
instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of tuture cash flows are recogmised directly 1n equity and any ineffective
portion 15 recogrused immediately in the income statement If the cash flow hedge of a firm commtment or forecast transaction
results in the recogmtion of an asset or a liability, then, at the tume the asset or Liability 15 recognised, the associated gains or losses
on the denvatinve that had previously been recognised n equity are included in the initial measurement of the asset or hability For
hedges that do not result n the recognition of a non-financial asset or hability, amounts deferred 1n equity are recognised in the
income statement in the same period in which the hedged item affects net profit or loss

Changes 1n the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recogtsed 1w the income
statement as they arise

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer quahties for
hedge accounting At that ime, any cumulative gmin or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity 15 retained n equity
until the forecast transaction occurs If a hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gan or loss
recogmsed n equity 1s transferred to net profit or loss for the penod

T'he Group recogruses an instrument as & hedging instrument by documenting, at the inception of the instrument, the relationship
between the instrument and the hedged stem and the objectives and strategy for undertaking the hedging transaction  To be
designated as a hedging instrument, an instrument must also be assessed, at inception and on an ongoing basis, to be highly
effective 1n offsetting changes wn fair values or cash tlows of hedged items

The Group has determined that the additional costs of meeting the extensive documentation requirements for the Group's large
number of foreign currency forward contrzcts and interest rate swaps arc not mented  Accordingly gamns and losses ansing from
measuring the contracts at fair value are recorded immediately in the mcome statement

(p) Share-based payments

The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 “‘Share-based Payment In accordance with the transitionat provisions, [FRS 2
has been applied to zll grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that were unvested as of 1 Apnl 2005

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certamn employees Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at
fair value at the date of grant The fair value determined at the grant date 15 expensed on a straight-line basis over the expected
vesting period, based on the Group’s estumate of shares that will eventually vest Fair value 1s measured by use of the Black-Scholes
optien pricing model

Following the acquisiton of Radstone Technology PLC by GE Fanuc Embedded Systems, Inc on 28 November 2006, the

outstanding share options in the parent company Radstone Technology PLC became exercisable in accordance with rules of the
respective share schemes

3  Critical accounting estimates and judgement

In applying the Group's accounting pohicies as set out 1n note 2, management 1s required to make certain esimates and judgements
concerning the future  These estimates and judgements are regularly reviewed and updated as necessary  The estimates and
Judgements that have the most sigmficant effect on the amounts included in these consolidated financial statements are as follows
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the nine month period ended 31 December 2006

3  Critical accounting estimates and judgement (continued)

(a) Goodwill

Each year the Group carmes out impairment tests of its goodwiil balances which requires esttmates to be made of the value m use of
its cash generating uniis (CGU's)  These value in use calculations are dependent on esumates of the future cash flows and long
term growih rates of the CGU's  Further detatls are provided in note 14

{b) Taxation

In determining the Group provisions for itcome tax and deferred tax it 1s necessary to consider transactions m a small number of
hey tax junsdrctions for which the ultimate tax determination 1s uncertam  Where the final outcome of these matters 1s different
from the amounts imually recorded, such differences will impact the current tax proviston, deferred tax provisions and income
statement 1n the peniod 1n which such determination 15 made

4 Revenue

9 months ended 12 months ended
31 December 31 March
2006 2006
£000 £000

An analysis of the Group's revenue 1s as follows
Sale of goods 31,049 51,907
Revenue from long-term contracts 621 3.019
31,670 54,926
Investment income 131 138
Total revenue 31,801 55,064

5  Segmental information

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group s organised into two divisions, Embedded Computing and Electromc Manufactuning
Services These divisions are the basis on which the Group reporis its pnimary segment information

Segmental information about these businesses 1s presented below

Embedded Electronic Manufacturing
Computing Services Total
9 months 12 months 9 months 12 months 9 months t2 months
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 December 31 March 31 December 3t March 31 December 31 March
2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue
Total revenue 23,565 46,032 8,495 9,589 32,060 55,621
lnter- es - - (390) (695) {390) (693)
External revenue 23,565 46,032 8,105 8,894 31,670 54,926
Cost of sales {14.391) {22.942) (6,075) (6.622) {20.466) {29,564}
Gross profit 9,174 23,000 2,030 2272 11,204 25,362

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevaihng market prices
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the nine month period ended 31 December 2006

5  Segmental information (continued)

Embedded Llectrome Manufacturing
Computing Services Fotal
9 months 12 months 9 months 12 months 9 months 12 months
ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31
December March December March December March
2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £1000 £000
Result
Result before amortisation
and unallocated costs (2,474) 8,849 1,887 2,106 (587) 10,955
Amortisation of intellectual
propenty ansing through acquisition  (851) (1,050) - - {851) (1.050)
Segment result (3.323) 1,189 1,887 2,106 (1,438) 9,905
Unallocated corporate expenses (2,902) (3,991)
Costs of bid defence (3.817) -
Operating (loss)/profit (8,157) 5914
lnvestment revenue 131 138
Finance income 2,177 -
Finance costs (1.149) {2.068)
(Loss)/profit before tax (6,993) 3,984
Tax 1,243 (699)
(LossMprofit after tax {5,758} 3285
Capital expenditure, additions to intangibles, depreciaton and amortisabon
Embedded Electronic Manufacturing
Computing Services Total
9 months 12 months 9 months 12 months 9 months 12 months
ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31
December March December March December March
2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Capual cxpenditure and
additions to intangibles
ALexcluding goodwall) 1,018 1272 422 294 1,433 1,366
Deprectation and amortisatton 1,339 2871 246 345 1,585 3216
Total assets by segment
Embedded Electromic Manofacturing
Computing Services Total
9 months 12 months 9 months 12 months 9 months 12 months
ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31
December March December March December March
2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Segment asseis 68,737 78,765 6,461 4208 75,198 82,973
Unallocated 10335 6.096
Total assets 835,533 R2 069

Unallocated assets represent tax recoverable, deferred tax assets, denvatives at fair value and cash and cash equivalents
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the nine month period ended 31 December 2006

5  Segmental information (continued)

Total halmhittes by segment

Embedded Flectrome Manufacturing

Computing Services lotal
9 months [2 months 9 months 12 months 9 months 12 months
ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31
December March December March December March
2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006
£000 E000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Segment habibties 10,204 8,477 2277 2,402 12,481 10,879
Unallocated 30,571 33311
Total hatuhties 43.052 44,190

Unallocated habilities represent denvatives at farr value, tax payable, deferred tax habilities, retirement benefit obligations and bank

loans and overdrafts

Geographical segments

9 months 12 months
ended 31 ended 31
December March
2006 2006
£7000 £7000

External Revenue
Unued Kingdom 9,845 13,358
Rest of Europe 2,249 6,265
North Amenca 18,305 28,795
Rest of World 1,271 6,508
31,670 54,926

Reverues are based on the location of the customer

Additions to property, plant
and equpment and

Other Information Total Assets wmtangible assets
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2006 2006 2006 2006
£'000 £7000 £000 £7000
United Kingdom 44,372 47,226 1,088 1,337
North Amenca 30,787 35,745 45 229
Rest of Europe 39 2 - -
Segment assets 75,198 82,973 1,433 1,566
Unallocated 10,335 6096 - -
85,533 £9,069 1,433 1,566

Total assets are based on the location of the assets  Unallocated assets represent taxation, denvatives at fur value and cash and

cash equivalents

Additions to property, plant and equipment and intangtble assets are based on the location of the assets
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6  Operating profit

9 months 12 months
ended 31 ended 31
December March
2006 2006
£000 £000
Operating profit 1s stated after charging Xcrediing)
Net foreign exchange (profits)losses (325) 294
Research and development costs
- Product development 7,825 7.662
- Amortisation of intangibles ansing from acquisition 836 1,050
Depreciation and amounts written ofT property, plant and equipment 1,585 2,142
(Profit¥Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 35) 3
Amortisation of intangible assets 15 24
Matenals cost of goods sold 14,826 17,579
Increase in tnventory provisions and amounts written off
inventones 322 692
Operating lease rentals
- land and buildings 254 339
- plant, equipment and vehicles 131 200
Staff costs (see note 8) 16,046 19,368
Auditors' remuneration
- audit services 137 141
=non-audit services — 5 ___8
Fees payable to the auditors 1 respect of non-audit services represent
Tax services
- compliance - 26
- advisory - 14
- 49
Further assurance services
- IFRS implementation work - 40
Onher services
- Other 5 2
Total 5 82

Auditors' remuneration for audit services provided to the Company amounted to £15,000 (March 2006 £15,000)
Pursuant to section 230 of the Compantes Act 1985, a separate Income Statement dealimg wath the results of the Company only has

not been presented  The loss after taxation for the financial peniod {before dividends paid) included 1n the accounts of the Company
amounted to £4,142,000 (March 2006 Profit £3,502,000)
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7 Directors’ emoluments

9 months 12 months
ended 31 ended 31
December March
2006 2006
£ £
Emoluments 462,117 535,438
Compensation for loss of office 25.000 -
Sums paid to third parties for directors” services 67,385 59,250
Directors’ pension contnbutions to defined contribution schemes 3570 5,738
Durectors' pension contnbutions to defired benefit schemes - 67,762
Aggregate emoluments 558,012 668,188
9 months 12 months
ended 31 ended 31
December March
2006 2006
Remuneration of the highest paid director
Emoluments £150,711 £258,793
Number of share options exercised 97,700 -
Number of shares recerved under long term incentive scheme 32,772 30,249
Share options exercised — exercise value £303,528 -
Shares received under long term incentive scheme — market value at award date £534.060 £85.000
9 months 12 months
ended 31 ended 31
December March
2006 2006
The number of directors who exercised share options dunng the penod
Number 3 -
The number of directors receiving qualifying service shares under a long term mcentive scheme dunng the penod
Number 3 3
The number of directors to whom retirement benefits were accruing at the end of the period
Number 1 1
The following retirement benefits are accrung to directors under the Group’s defined benefit schemes
Increase Increase Transfer Transfer Transfer
maccrued  inaccrued value of value of value of Increase in
Accrued pension pension (A) less accrued accrued transfer value
penston at excluding including directors’ pension at pension at less directors’
31 December inflation (A) inflaion  contnbutions 31 March 31 December contributions
2006 2006 2006
£ £ £ £ £ £ i
§ L Pemn 87,171 10,413 12,504 141,106 970,941 1,139.338 132,596

The transfer values disciosed above do not represent a sum paid or payable to the individual director but a potennial hability of the

penston scheme
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8 Staff costs

The average weekly number of employees {including executive directors) was

Group Company

9 months 12 months 9 months 12 months
ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31
December March December March
2006 2006 2006 2006
Number Number Number Number
Operations 405 381 - -
Selling and distnbution 5 50 - -
Admumstrauon 32 32 32 32
488 463 32 32

The aggregate remuneration comprised

Group Company
9 months 12 months 9 months {2 months
ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31
December March December March
2006 2006 2006 2006
£000 £000 £1000 £000
Wages and salanes 13,115 16,379 824 },396
Social secunity costs 1,528 1,938 102 157
Pension costs (see note 33)

- defined contribution schemes 234 370 12 15
- defined benefit schemes 378 506 86 106
Share based payment 791 175 175 45
16,046 19,368 1,192 1,719

9  Reconciliations between profit and adjusted profit

Additional performance mdicators have been used based upon adjustments to operating profit to exclude exceptional non-trading
income and amortisation of mtangible assets  These are calculated as follows

9 months ended 12 months ended

31 December 31 March

1006 2006

Notes £'000 £000

Operaung (loss)profit (8,157) 5914
Amortisation of intangibles ansing from acquisitions (a) 851 1,050
Costs of bid defenge 3.817 -
Adjustments to operating {lossVprofit 4,668 1,050
Adyusted operatin it (3,489} 6,964

23




Radstone Technology PLC

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the nine month period ended 31 December 2006

9  Reconcibations between profit and adjusted profit (continued)

9 months ended

12 months ended

31 December 31 March

2006 2006

Notes £'000 £000

(Loss)Yprofit before 1ax (6,998) 3,984
Financial instruments ()] 2,177) 565
Adjustments to gperating (lossVprofit (above) 4.668 1,050
A ments to (lgss. fit betore tax 2,49 1,615
Adjusted (loss)profit before tax (4.507) 5,599
(Loss)profit for the period (5,755) 3,285
Adjustments to (loss)Vprofit betore tax {above) 2,491 1,615
Tax effect of adjustments to (lossVprofit 397 (479}
Adjusted {toss)/profit for the peniod (2,867) 4421

{a) Amortisation of intangibles ansing on acquisitions relates to acquired intellectual property  Under UK GAAP this charge

would have formed part of the amortisation of goodwall, which was also excluded from the adjusted operating profit

{b) [AS 39 ("Financial Instruments Recogmition and Measurement”} was adopted with effect trom 1 Apnil 2005
the Group to far value the financial mstruments used to manage Radstone's foreign exchange exposures  This creates
volatility on profit over the full term of Lhe outstanding mnstruments as exchange rates move over time
minumal impact on prefit over the full term of the mstruments, but can cause significant volatiity on particular balance sheet
dates The Group 15 therefore stating profit before tax and profit for the period before changes in the valuation of these

msiruments so that the underlying performance of the Group can more clearly be seen

9 menths ended

12 months ended

31 December 31 March
2006 2006
£000 £000
Movement in fair value of financial instruments
Fair value at 31 December 2006 (31 March 2006) 1,777 (334)
Add/(deduct) Fair value recogmised on | Apnl 2006 {1 Apn| 2003) 334 (957)
2,111 (1,291)
Ins to INcome statem m_neial far c 66 726
Movement in fair value of Financial instruments in the penod 2177 (565)
10 Investment revenue
9 months ended 12 months ended
31 December 31 March
2006 2006
£000 £000
Interest income 131 138
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for the nine month period ended 31 December 2006

11 Finance costs

9 months ended 12 months ended

31 December 31 March
2006 2006
£000 £7000
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts 333 1,034
Interest payable on finance leases 17 45
Total borrowing costs 850 1,079
Loss on fair value movement of financial instruments (see note 25) - 565
Reurement benefit scheme finance charges (see note 33} 299 424
1,149 2,068

12 Tax
9 months ended 12 months ended
31 December 31 March
2006 2006
£600 £°000
UK Corporation tax
- Current 357 1,090
- Prior years (285) (4335)
{642) 635
Overseas taxes
- Current (426) 296
lotal current tax {1.OA8) 951
Delerred tax
UK {48) (244)
Overseas (127 &
Total deferred tax (175) {252)
Total tax (creditficharpe {1,243} 699

Corporation 1ax in the UK 1s calculated at 30% (March 2006 30%) of the estimated assessable profit for the penod  Taxation for

other junsdictions 1s calculated at the rates prevailing m the respective junisdictions
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12 Tax (continued)

The difference between the total current tax shown above and the amount calculated by applyng the standard rate of UK
corporation tax te the profit before tax 1s as follows

9 months ended 12 months ended
31 December 31 March
2006 2006
£00 £000
Groug (lossYprofit before tax (6,998) 3984
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 30% (2006 30%) (2.099) 1,195
Effects of
- Tax effect of incomelexpenses that are not taxable/allowable
in determuning taxable profit (353) 74
- Tax effect of ttems giving rise to temporary differences 443 6)
- Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in
other jurisdictions (70) (129)
- lax effects of adjustments made in respect of prior penods (285) (433)
- 1ax efiect of losses carned forward 1,121 -
Tax expense for the penod {1,243} 699
The amount of tax {charged)Ycredited to equety 15 as follows
9 months ended 12 months ended
31 December 31 March
2006 2006
£000 £000
Tax tahen directly 1o equity
Current tax
- Foreign exchange {149) 150
Deferred tax
- Defined benefit pension schemes 134 59
- Fingncial instruments - 287
(15) (78)
Tax on 1tems transferred from equity
- Financial istruments 20 218
5 140
13 Dividends
Amounts recogmsed as disinbuttons to equity holders in the penod
9 months ended 12 meonths ended
31 December 31 March
2006 2006
£000 £000
Fmnal dividend for the year ended 31 March 2006 of
3 t5p (31 March 2005 2 70p) per ordinary share 956 819
Interim dividend for the 9 months ended 31 December 2006 of
1l (31 March 2 1,05 r ordmary share - 318
956 1,137
Proposed final dividend for the 9 months ended 31 December 2006 of
£l (31 March 2006, 2.70p) per share - 956
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14 Goodwill

Group fotal
£°000
Atl Apnl 2006 24,741
Exchange differences _axn
At 31 December 2006 24,728

Goodwill acquired in a business combnation 1s allecated, at acquisitien, to the cash generating units (CGUs) that are expected to

benefit from that business combination  The carrying amount of goodwili was allocated as follows

31 December 31 March
2006 2006
£000 £000

Embedded Computing
Sensor processing (ICS Ltd) 19,720 19,720
Image processing (Octec Lid) 4,923 4,923
Test and Measurement (DagScribe Inc,) 85 98
24,728 24741

The Group tests goodwill annually for impatrment, or more frequently 1f there are indications that goodwill might be impawed

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in-use calculations  The hey assumptions for the value m-use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the
penod Management esumates discount rates using rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the
nishs specific to the CGUs  The growth rates are based on imdustry growth forecasts  Changes in selling prices and direct costs are

based on past practices and expectations of future changes i the market

The Group prepares cash flow torecasts for the next five years extrapolated from the most recent financial budgets approved by

management, based on an estimated revenue growth rate of 10%

The rate used to discount the torecast cash flows 15 8%

A detmled review of the camying value of goodwill at 31 December 2006 has been performed and the Directors consider that no

adjustment 15 required
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15 intangible assets

Group Company
Arising from
acquisihiens
Intellectual
Property Other Total Other
£'000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2006 8,040 433 8473 428
Lxchange differences (43 - (43) -
At 31 December 2006 7,997 433 8,430 428
Amortisahon i
At 1 Apnl 2006 1,807 411 2218 406 I
Charge 836 I3 851 15 !
Exchange difterences 9 - 9 - !
At 31 December 2006 2,652 426 3078 421 !
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2006 5345 7 5352 7
At31 March 2006 6,233 22 6,255 22

Other represents manutactunng licences
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16 Property, plant and equipment

Group Company
Fixtures,
Plant fittings
L.and and and and Land and
buildings machinery equipment Total buildings
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
Al Apnl 2006 12,072 15,926 1,706 29,704 11,111
Additions 108 1,147 178 1,433 -
Exchange differences (103) (39) {95) (237) -
Disposals - {2,172) (5) {2,177y -
At 31 December 2006 12,077 14,862 1,784 28,723 11,111
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2006 524 11,889 576 13,385 353
Charge for the penod 178 1,212 195 1,585 145
Exchange differences (16) (31 (63) (110) -
Eliminated on disposals - {2,170} (3 (2,175) -
At 31 December 2006 686 10,800 1,103 12,689 498
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2006 11,391 3,962 681 16,034 10613
At 3] March 2006 11,548 4.037 730 16,315 10,758

The carrying amount of tangible fixed assets held under finance leases at 31 December 2006 was £174,000 (March 2006

£344,000) which all relates to plant and machinery

The Group has pledged land and buildings, together with associated fixtures, fittings and equipment with a carrying amount of

approximately £11,391,000 {March 2006 £11,741,000) to secure banking faciliies granted to the Group

29




Radstone Technology PLC

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the nine month period ended 31 December 2006

17 Investments

Company Interests
in Group
undertakings
£000
Cost
At 1 April 2006 and 31 December 2006 41.050
Impairment
At 1 Apnl 2046 and 31 December 2006 3.500
Carrywng value
At3) March 2006 and 31 December 2006 37.550

Fhe principal operating subsidianes of the Group and Company at 31 December 2006 are as tollows

Country of
mcorperation
Name of undertaking or registration
Foundation Technology England and
Limited Wales
Radstone Limited England and
Wales
Radstone Technology USA
Corporation
Radstone Technology France
{France) SARL
Octec Limated England and
Wales
Interactive Circuits and
Systems Limited Canada
DagScnbe Technology Inc USA

Proportion of
nominal value of
i1ssued shares held

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Nt ot L

(R g

Principal activity

Surface-mount assembly of
electronic sub-systems

Design and manufacture of
digatal electronic equipment

Design, marheting and selling of digital
electronic equipment

Design and manufacture of image
processors and video trackers for
the embedded computing market

Design and manufacture of reai-
time data acquisition and analogue
to digital conversion products for the
embedded sensor processing marhet

All of the above companies operated principally i thewr country of incorporation or registration
The directors have applied section 231 of the Companies Act 1985 and therefore list only significant subsidiary companies
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18 Inventories

Group
31 December 31 March
2006 2006
£000 £7000
Raw matenals and consumables 4,241 3526
Work in progress 10,749 7,581
Finushed goods 1,745 1,177
16,735 12,284

The directors believe that there ts no significant difference between the replacement cost and the fair value of the tnventonies shown

19 Long term contract balances

Group
31 December 31 March
2006 2006
£7000 £7000
Contracts 1n progress at the balance sheet date
_Amounts due from contract customers included in trade and other recervables 193 2,691
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses to date 2,492 2,474
_Less progress billings (5,350} (2.777)
Amounts due to contract customers (2,858) (3101)

At 31 December 2006, retentions held by customers for contract work amounted to £nil (March 2006 £m1l)  Advances recewved
from customers for contract work amounted 10 £ml (March 2006 £n1l)

20 Trade and other receivables

Group Company

31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March

2006 2006 2006 2006

£000 £000 £000 £'000

Amounts recervable for the sale of goods 9,698 21,283 - -

Amounts owed by subsidiaries - - 17,422 4,013
Other recervables, prepayments and

accrued income 2,243 1,635 37 286

Loan notes 409 462 - -

12.350 23,380 17,792 4,299

The loan noles were 1ssued to the acquirer of SensorCom Inc, a subsidiary sold in March 2005, as settlement of inter-Group
indebtedness at the date of acquisition and are denorminated in US dollars  They are repayable in five equal annual instalments
from the date of 1ssue being 31 March 2005

The average credit penod taken on sales of goods/services 1s 63 days (March 2006 7] days) An allowance has been made for
estimated urecoverable amounts from the sale of goods of £46,000 (March 2006 £42,000) This allowance has been determined

by reference to past default expenence

The directors consider that the carying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value
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21  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and Company and short-term bank deposits with an ongmal matunty of

three months orless  The carrying amount ot these assets approximates ther fair value

Group Company
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2006 2006 2006 2006
£'000 £000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and 1n_hand 3.826 2,188 1,882 11,878
Cash and cash equivalents 3,826 2,188 1,882 11,878
22 Trade and other payables
Group Company
31 December 31t March 31 December 31 March
2006 2006 2006 2006
£000 £7000 £000 £7000
Trade payables 5,145 6,176 50 111
Amounts due to contract customers 2,858 303 - -
Amounts owed to subsidianes - - 2,291 3311
Other payables 2,028 1,796 927 805
Accruals and deferred income 2,198 2195 353 452
12,229 10,470 3,621 4,679

The directors consider that the carrying emount of trade payables approximates to their fair value

Group

Trade and other payables principally compnse amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongomng costs The average credit
penod taken for trade purchases 1s 104 days (March 2006 73 days)

Company

Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts owed to subsidtanies on current accounts ansing from cash pooling
arrangements The average credut pertod taken for trade purchases ts 41 days (March 2006 24 days)
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23 Obligations under finance leases

Present value

Mmumum of mmimum
lease payments lease payments
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2006 2006 2006 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000
Group
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 173 215 173 192
In the second to 1ifth years inclusive 79 230 79 219
252 445 252 411
Less, fulure finance charges (23) (34) - -
Present value of lease obhigations 229 411 252 411
Less  amount due for settlement within
one year (shown under current liabilibes) 173 192
Amount due for settlement after pne year 79 219

It 15 the Group's policy to lease certaun of its plant and machinery under finance leases, the obligations for which are secured by the
lessors’ charges over the leased assets  The average lease term 1s 7 years  For the 9 months ended 31 December 2006 the average
mplicit borrowing rate was 6 74% (March 2006 6 78%)  Interest rates are fixed at the contract date  All lease obligations are
denominated n sterhing or euros, are on a fived repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental
payments

The directors consider that the carrying amount of lease obligations approxtmates to thewr fair value
Company

The Company held no finance leases at 31 December 2006 (March 2006 nil}

24 Bank overdrafts and loans

Group Company
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2006 2006 2006 2006
£000 £7000 £000 £000
Bank overdrafis 132 - 6,468 -
Bank loans 18,347 20,001 17,120 18,973
18,479 20,001 23,588 18,973
The borrowings are repayable as follows
On demand or within ane year 6,777 4812 12,068 4.007
In the second year 2,01 3,268 2,007 3,242
In the third to fifth years inclusive 44887 6,649 4,807 6,563
After five years 4,784 5,272 4,706 3,161
18,479 20,001 23,588 18,973
Less amount due for settlement within 12 months
(shown ynder current Liabilites) (6,777) {4,812) (12,068)  (4,007)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 11,702 15,189 11,520 14,966

The directors constder that the camying amount of banh overdrafts and loans approximate to their fair value
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24 Bank overdrafts and loans (continued)

Group
Analysis of borrowings by currency
Canadian us
Total Sterling dollars dollars
£000 £000 £000 £000
31 December 2006
Bank loans 18,479 13,173 3.192 2114
31 March 2006
Baoh {oans 20,001 14,396 1,59 2015

At 31 Dccember 2006 there were undrawn borrowing facilittes 1n various currencies amounting to £7,415000 (March 2006
£9 859,000), of these, £2,868,000 were comnutted (March 2006 £5,154,000) of which £868,000 (March 2006 £2,954,000) are
renewable within one year

The weighted average interest rates paid were as follows

31 December 31 March
2006 2006
% %

Bank loans
Sterhing 596 592
US dollar 652 573
Canadian dollar 552 4i8
Bank overdrafts 594 584

All bank loans were arranged at floating 1nterest rates with regular repnicing dates of less than six months and expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate nsk. As detailed 1n note 25, to manage the nisk the Group entered into interest rate and cross-currency swaps

Bank overdrafis are repayable on demand and carry interest at between 0 75% and 1 25% above basc and prime rate (March 2006
0 75% and | 25%) Banh loans carry nterest Linked to LIBOR plus a commercial margin

The Group has principal bank loans as follows

(@

(t)

(©

()

a loan of £7 7m (March 2006 £8 2m} The loan was taken out 1n March 2004 Repayments commenced in October 2005
and continue until July 2019 The loan 1s secured by a charge over certain of the Group's properties dated September 2003

a loan of £2 8m (March 2006 £4 2m) The loan was taken out in September 2003  Repayments commenced in Apnl 2004
and continue until October 2008  The loan 15 secured by a debenture dated September 2003

a lean of C$ 6 7m (March 2006 C$ 6 8m) The loan was taken out 10 September 2003  Repayment 15 due in August 2008
The loan 15 secured by a debenture dated September 2003

In July 2004 a £6 Om revolving credit factlity was entered mto  The amount available under the facihty reduces by £0 6m on
six monthly intervals which commenced in December 2004 and ends in June 2009  The loan 15 secured by a debenture dated
Scpiember 2004 As at 31 December 2006, £1 Om had been drawn on thus facihity (March 2006 £2 Om)

All external bank loans were repaid subsequent to the penod end
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24 Bank overdrafts and loans (continued)

Company
Analysis of borrowing by currency
Canadan us
Total Sterling dollars dollars
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
31 December 2006
Bank loans 23,588 19,509 2,956 1093
31 March 2006
Bank loans 18,973 14,396 3,342 1,235

At 31 December 2006 there were undrawn borowing facilities amounting to £4,597,000 (March 2006 £6,440,000), of these,
£2,357,000 were comimitted (March 2006 £4,200,000) of which £357,000 (March 2006 £2,000,000) are renewable within one
year

‘The weighted average inlerest rates pard were as follows

31 December 31 March
2006 2006
% %

Bank loans
Sterling 596 592
US dollar 652 507
Canadian dollar 552 415

All bank loans were arranged at floauing interest rates with regular repncing dates of less than six months and expose the Company
to cash flow mterest rate nsh

As detailed 1n note 25, the Company has entered into interest mte and cross-currency swap to manage the nsk

The Company had principal bank loans as outlined in the Group figures (a) to (d) above All extenal bank loans were repaid
subsequent fo the penod end

25 Derivative financial instruments

The Group's operations expose it to 2 number of financial nsks including foreign currency nisk, credit nsk, interest rate nsk and
hquidity risk  The nisks are managed in accordance with Board approved objectives, policies and authonties

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates intemationally and 1s subject to foreign exchange nisks on future commercial transactions and net investments
in foreign subsidianies  The principal exposures anse with respect to the US dollar / Pound sterling exchange rate

To mitigate nshs assoctated with future commercial transactions, the Group policy 15 to hedge known and certamn forecast
transaction exposures based on historical expenence and projections  The Group policy durmg the period was to hedge at least
80% of the next s1x months anticipated exposure and can hedge up to exghteen months ahead

The Group has used borrowings denominated in the relevant currencies to hedge its investment an its US and Canadian companies

Foliowing 1ts acquisiion by GE Fanuc Embedded Systems, Inc, the Group 1s reviewing its hedging policies Since the pertod end,
the foreign currency loans have been repaid and the bulk of the currency derivative portfolio has been sold back to the counterparty
banks

Credit nsk

The Group's pnncipal financral assets are bank balances, cash and trade and other receivables  The Group's credit nsh 1s pnmanly
attnbutable to its trade receivables  The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowance tor doubtful receivables,
estimated by the Group's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economi< environment
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25 Denrivative financial instruments (continued)

Credit nsk (continued)

Policies are mamtaimed to ensure the Group makes sales to customers with an appropriate credt ustory  Letters of credit or other
appropriale instruments are put 1n place to reduce credit nsh where considered necessary

The credit nsk on liquid funds and denvative financial instruments 1s ltmited because the counterparties arc banks with high credit
ratings assigned by intemational credit-rating agencies

['he Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and
customers

Interest rate risk

‘The Group has borrowing 1ssued at floating rates of interest, expostng the Group to cash flow interest rate nsk

The Group has mitigated interest rate nishs through the use ot interest rate swaps which have the economic eftect of converting the
floating rate borrowings into fixed rate borrowings

Surplus funds are placed on short term deposit  These deposits have floating rates of interest, and thus there 1s some modest
exposure to mterest rates

Liquidity risk

Ihe Group has a strong cash flow and where pracucabie the funds generated by operating compames are managed on a regional
basis  For short-term working capital purposes, most operating companies utilise local banking facilities within an overall Group
arrangement

The Group utilises where necessary overdrafl facihties for short-term flexibility and a revolving credut facility  The Group's pelicy
18 to maintain undrawn committed borrowing factlities 1n order to provide tlexibility n the management of the Group's hiquidity,
details are provided 1n note 24

Financial ins¢truments

For cash, receivables and short term borrowings the fair value of the financial instruments approximates to therr bool value due to
the short maturity periods of these financial instruments  On recervables allowances are made within the book value for credit nsh
For medium and long term borrowings and other financial habilities the fair value 15 based on market values or, where not avatlable,
on discounting future cash flows at prevailing market rates  The fair values of the Group's currency and interest rate denvatives are
established using valuation techmiques, pnmanly discounting cash flows, based on assumptions that are supported by observable
marhet prices ot rates

Currency Derivatives

The Group has utilised currency derivatives to hedge significant future transactions and cash flows  The Group 15 a party to a
vanety of foreign currency forward contracts and options 1n the management of its exchange rate exposures  The instruments
purchased are primarily denominated in the currencies of the Group's pnincipal markets

At the balance sheet date, total gross notional amount of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts that the Group has
commutted are as below

31 December 31 March

2006 2006

USs uss

Forward foreign exchange contracts 208m 30 7m

In addition, the Group had options to selt US dollars equivalent to an amount of approximately US $11 Om (March 2006 US
$16 8m) as a hedge against exchange losses on future sales of goods

These arrangements are typically designed to address significant exchange exposures over the eighteen months to 30 September
2007 and are renewed on a revolving basis as required
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25 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Currency Derivatives (continued)

At 31 December 2006 the fair value of the Group's currency derivatives 1s estimated to be an asset of approximately £1,457,000 (31
March 2006 £521,000 hability) These amounts are based on market values of equivalent instruments at the balance sheet date
compnsing current assets The gamn n far value on the currency denvatives for the pertod was £1,978,000 (March 2006
£1,226,000 loss)

Currency denvatives are not accounted for using IFRS hedge accounting and so any movement in fair values following imtial
recognition are reflected in the Income Statement

Interest rate swaps

The Group has used a combination of bullet and amortising mterest rate and cross-curmency swaps to manage s exposure to interest
rate movements on its bank borrowings  The swaps, denominated n sterling, US dollars and Canadian dollars, have been entered
into to achieve 2n appropnate mtx of fixed and tloating rate exposure and will mature over the next eight years  Fixed swap rates
range from 3 655% to 5 6825% and tloating rates are sterling, US doilar and Canadian dollar LIBOR

The notional amounts of the interest rate swaps are £4 Om and US $2 0m  The notional amounts of the cross-currency swaps are
£50m / US $8 3m and C $6 7m / US 35 Om

As at 31 December 2006 the fair value of the Group's swaps 1s estimated to be an asset of £320,000 (31 March 2006 £187,000)

These amounts are based on market values of equivalent instruments at the balance sheet date, comprising current assets The gain
in fair value on swaps for the period was £133 000

Movement 1n fair values

Derviative Type
Curreacy Swap Total
£'000 £000 £'000
Fair values at 1 Apnl 2006 — (habihity Vasset (521) 187 (334)
Recycled gams to income statement from imittal fair value {(24) {42) (66)
Eair value gatn in od through mcome statement 2,002 175 2,177
Ear yalues at 31 Decemher 2006 - asset 1,457 320 1,777

Balance sheet analys:s (both periods)
Denvative Type

Currency Swap Total

£000 £000 £000

Current agsets 1,437 320 1,777
Fair values at 31 December 2006 1,457 320 1777
Current assets 21 192 213
Cument habilities {542) (5) (547)
Eaic values at 31 March 2006 {521) 187 (334)
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26 Deferred tax

Group

The following are the major deferred tax assets and labilities recogiused by the Group and movements thereon dunng the current
and pnor reporting penods

Employce
Accelerated Losses Share Retirement
lax Carried Options Benefit Other
Deprecianon Forward Costs  Dernatinves Obligations Intangibles Costs Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Atl Aprd 2006 (546) - 63 100 2.844 (1,761) (35) 665
Exchange adjustment - - - - - - (1) (12)
Credit/(charge) to income 214 810 (63) (634) (84) 236 (303) 176
Credit/(charge) to equity - - - 20 134 - - 154
At 31 December 2006 {332) 210 - {5314) 2,894 (1,525} (350} 983

Certain deterred tax assets and liabilities have been offset  The following 1s the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after otfset)
for financial reporting purposes

31 December 31 March

2006 2006

£000 £000

Deferred tax assets 2,894 2,844
Deferred tax liabilities (1.911) (2,179)
983 663

TI'here are no aggregate temporary differences associated with investments in substdianes due to available foreign tax credits

In the 2007 Budget, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a reduction in the rate of corporation tax from 30% to 28% The
impact of this change will be 1o reduce the net Deferred Tax asset on the Consolidated Balance Sheet from £983,000 to £917,000

Company

The following are the major deferred tax asscts and habilities recogmsed by the Company and movements thereon during the current
and pnor reporting peniods

Employee

Accelerated share

tax options
depreciation costs Total
£000 £'000 £000
At | Apnl 2006 (741) 28 (713)
{ChargeYcredit to income 88 {28) 60
At.31 Decemher 2006 (653) - {653)

In the 2007 Budget, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a reduction in the rate of corporation tax from 30% to 28% The
impact of this change will be to reduce the net Deferred Tax liability on the Company’s Balance Sheet from £653,000 to £609,000
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27  Share capital

31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2006 2006 2006 2006
Number Number £000 £000
Authonised
Ordinary shares of 12p each 44,000,000 44,000.000 5,500 5.500
Allotted, 1ssued and fully pard -
Ordinary shares of 12%p each
At 1 Apnl 30,336,640 30,299,640 3,792 3,787
Allotted under share option
schemes 1,342,969 37,000 168 3
At 31 December. 31,679,609 30336 640 3,960 3,792

28 Share-based payments

{(a) Approved Executrve Share Option Scheme

Unul 28 November 2006, the Company operated an Executive Share Option Scheme which was approved by the Board of the
Inland Revenue on 31 March 1994 (the Approval Date) Under the scheme rules, no further options would be granted tollowing the
tenth anmiversary of the Approval Date

The Scheme was performance related Options were not exercisable unless the percentage increase 1n the Company's basic earnings
per share was greater than or equal to 2% per annum above the percentage increase in the RPI over the relevant peniod 1n which the

option could be enercised The RPTis the “All ltems™ Index ot Retail Prices as published by the Central Statistics Office

On 28 November 2006, Radstone Technology PLC was acquired by GE Fanuc Embedded Systems Inc, and the outstanding share
options became exercisable Following the exercise of all options, the scheme has been terminated

The Board of the Company administered the Scheme, which had been delegated to the remuneration committee, who had authority
to offer options to selected employees

Details of the existing options outstanding duning the nine month penod are as follows

Group 9 months ended 12 months ended
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
Weighted Weighted
Number average Number average
of share exercise of share exercise
ophions price (p) options price {p}
QOutstanding at beginming of period 378,930 235 415930 235
Forfeited dunng the penod (32,480) 270 - -
Exercised dunng the penod (346,450) 23 (37.000) 234
Outstanding ai the end of the penod - - 378,930 233
Exercisable at the end of the period - - 359,450 231
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28 Share-based payments

(a) Approved Executive Share Qption Scheme (continued)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised dunng the period was 410p No options were
granted duning the mine month penod ended 31 December 2006 (March 2006 mil)

Company 9 months ended 12 months ended
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
Weighted Weighted
Number average Number average
of share exercise of share exercise
options price {p) options pnce (p)
Outstanding at beginmng of period 34,740 255 53,740 247
[ orfeited duning the penod (3,740) 308 - -
Exercised during the period (31.000) 231 (19,000 234
Qutsianding at the end of the penod - - 34,740 255
Lxercisable at the end of the peptod - - 25,000 234

The weighted average share pnce at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the pertod was 410p No options were
granted duning the mine month period ended 31 December 2006 (March 2006 mil)

(b) Unapproved Execntive Share Option Scheme

Unul 28 November 2006, the Company also operated an Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme  The Scheme was
performance related Options were not exercisable unless the percentage increase in the Company's basic earmings per share was
greater than or equal to 5% per annum above the percentage increase in the RPI over the relevant peniod 1n which the option could
be exercised  The RPI s the "All Items” index of Retail Prices as published by the Central Siaustics Office

The Board of the Company administered the Scheme, which had been delegated to the remuneration commuttee, who had authority
to offer options to selected employees

On 28 November 2006, Radstone Technology PLC was acquired by GE Fanuc Embedded Systems Inc, and the outstanding share
options became exercisable Following the exercise of all options, the scheme has been termmated

Details of the options cutstanding duning the mine month penod are as follows

Group 9 months ended 12 months ended
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise Number exercise
of shares price {p) of shares pnce (p}
QOutstanding at beginning of penad 1,161,560 314 1,208,560 315
Granted duning the penod 30,000 256 - -
Forfeited during the penod (146,241} 310 - -
Exercised during the penod (996,519) 314 (47.000) 320
Quistanding at the.end of the pencd 48,800 307 1,161,560 114
Exercisable at the end of the period - - - .
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28 Share-based payments (continued)
(b) Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme {continued)
The werghted average share pnice at the date of exercise for share options exercised dunng the penod was 410p The options

outstanding at 31 December 2006 had a weighted average exercise price of 307p, with a weighted average remaming contractual hfe
of | month No options were granted during the mine month period ended 31 December 2006 (March 2006 nil)

Company 9 months ended 12 months ended
31 December 2006 31 March 2006
Weighted Weighted
Number average Number average
of share exercise of share EXETCI5e
aptions price (p} options price {p)
QOutstanding at beginning of pertod 214,241 313 261,241 314
Forfetted dunng the penod (68,691) 314 -

Exercised dunng the period (145,550) 310 (47,000} 320
Quistandang at the end of the penod - - 214,241 313
Exercisable at the end of the period - - - .

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the period was 410p No options were
granted during the mune month penod ended 31 December 2006 (March 2006 mil)

(c) Executive Share Incentive Plan ("ESIP")

Under the ESIP, a participant could be granted an award of ordinary shares worth up to 50% of gross base salary as at 31 March in
the preceding financial year These shares would be unconditionally awarded only after the satisfection of certan performance
cnteria measured over a fixed three year period Vesting commenced at 30% for a median performance, with 31% to 50% on a
shiding scale basis between the median and top quarttle, and 100% of the award being receivable for the top quartile performance

Details of the maximum potential performance dependent awards outstanding duning the nine month penod are as follows

Group 9 months ended 12 months ended
31 December 31 March

2006 2006

Number Number

of share of share

opbons options

Qutstanding at beginning of penod 77,402 -
Forfeited dunng the penod (106,279) -
Granted during the penod 73,584 77,402
Excercised duning the penod (44,707} -
Outstanding at the end of the penod - 77,402
Exercisabte at the end of the peniod - -

All shares were converted to cash at 31 December 2006, but the cash was not distnbuted unul after the penod end
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28 Share-based payments (continued)
(c) Executive Share Incentive Plan ("ESIP") (continued)

The potential awards outstanding at 31 December 2006 would have had a weighted average remaming contractuat life ot 1 year and
three momhs However, these awards became payable upon the takeover by GE Fanuc Embedded Systems Inc  subject to the
satisfaction of the vesting critena In the mine month penod ending 31 December 2006 performance conditional awards were granted
on 14 August 2006 The aggregate of the estimated fair values of the awards granted 15 £302,000

Company % months ended 12 months ended
31 December 31 March

2006 2006

Mumber Number

of share of share

options options

Outstanding at beginning of period 51,601 -
Forfeited dunng the perniod (21,352) -
Granted durtng the peniod 46,126 51,601
Exercised dunng the pertod (76.375) -
Quistanding at the end_of the penod - 51,601
Exercisable at the end of the period = -

The options outstanding at 31 December 2006 would have had a weighted average remaiming contractual Ife of 1 year and three
months However, these awards became payable upon the takeover by GE Fanue Embedded Systems Inc , subject to the satisfaction
of the vesting cntena  In the mne month penod ended 31 December 2006, options were granted on 14 August 2006 The aggregate
of the estimated fair values of the options granted 1s £189,000

Group and Company

Untl 28 November 2006, the Group's equity settled share-based payments were measured at fair value at the date of grant  The fair
value determined at the grant date was expensed on a strmght lme basis over the expected vesung penod, based on the Group's
estimate of shares that would eventually vest  Fair value was measured by use of the Black-Scholes option pnecing model using the
following assumpuions for hoth the year ended 31 March 2006 and the nine month penod ended 31 December 2006 On 28
November 2006, Radstone Technology PLC was purchased by GE Fanuc Embedded Systems Inc The scheme therefore terminated
on that date

Approved Unapproved

Opton Option
Scheme Scheme LSIP
Werghted average share price at grant (p) 308 3i5 281
Weighted average exercise price (p) 308 3is -
Expected volatility (%) 235 235 235
Expected option bfe (years) 42 42 30
Weighted average nsk free interest rate (%) 43 46 46
Expected dividends (%) L5 1.3 15

Expected volatility was determaned by calculating the histoncal volatihity of the Group's share price over the previous 18 months
The expected option hfe used in the model has been adjusted based on management's best esumate, for the effects of exercise
reductions and behavioural considerations

Group

The Group recognised total charges of £775,000 (March 2006 £175,000) related to equity settled share-based payment transactions
Company

The Company recogmised total charges of £175,000 (March 2006 £45,000) related to equity settled share-based payment
transactions
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29 Reserves

Share Hedging and Reserve
Premium Other Retamned  Translation for own Total
Account Reserve Earmings Reserve Shares Reserves
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £1000
Group
At 31 March 2006 25,152 1,388 14,627 673 (733) 41,087
Total recogmsed income and
expense - - (6,223) (390) - (6,613)
Dividends paid - - (936) - - (936)
New share capital subscribed 3,759 - - - - 3,759
Profit on disposal of surpius
shares held by ESOT - - 154 - - 154
Equity settled employee
share scheme - - 337 - - 337
Disposal of own shares - - - - 753 753
At 31 December 2006 28,911 1,388 7,939 283 - 38,521
Company
At 31 March 2006 25,152 1,388 10,714 - (753) 36,501
Total recogmised income and
expense - - (4,142} - - {4,142)
Dhvidends paid - - (956) - - (956)
New share capital subscribed 3,759 - - - - 3,759
Profit on disposal of surplus
shares held by ESOT - B 155 - - 155
Eqinty settled employee
share scheme - - 103 - - 103
Disposal of own shares - - - - 753 753
At3] December 2006 28911 1,388 5.R74 - - 36,173

The cumulative amount of goodwll wnitten oft directly to reserves ts £31,000 (March 2006  £31,000)

The Other reserve arose from S 131 merger relief under the Compamies Act 1985 It represents the difference between the market
value and the norminal value of shares i1ssued as part-constderation for the acquisttrons of ICS Limited and Octec Limited
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30 Own shares

Croup and Company MNominal Called up
Cost value share capitat
Number £000 £000 Yo

Radstone lechnology Employee Trust

At 1 Apnl 2006 206,787 589 26 068
Additions 17,878 47 2 006
Disposals {224 663} (636) (28} (0.74)

AL31 December 2006 - . - -

Radstone [ echnology PLC All kmployee

Share Ownership Plan .

At 1 Apnl 2006 60,013 164 7 020
Addutions 7,299 24 1 002
Disposals {62,312} (188) (8) {022)

A1 31 December 2006 - . - _

Total
A1 31 December 2006 = - - -

AL3] March 2006 266,800 153 33 0.88

The Radstone Technology Employee Trust was formed to purchase shares used to meet the Company’s future obligations in respect
of the share incentive schemes A performance related incentive plan was 1n operation, for which bonuses were based upon the
participant’s basic salary Bonuses were paid as 50% 1n cash and 50% 1n shares in the Company These shares were held i trust for
three years, and 1f the participant left the Company duning this period, the nght of ownership was forfeited except in certain
circumstances such as retirement or 1ll health

Shares purchased by the Radstone Technology PLC All Employee Share Ownership Plan represented matching shares under the
Company's Share Incentive Plan (SIP) under which employees could subscnbe up to a maximum of the lower of £125 or 10% of
salary per month to purchase shares in the Company For every two parinership shares that the employee bought, the Company
contnibuted a further matching share at no cost to the employee Ali shares purchased were held 1n trust on behalt of the employee,
whose interest 1n the matching shares was forfeited should the partnershup shares be withdrawn before the expiry of three years from
the date of purchase

On 28 November 2006, Radsione Technolegy PLC was acquired by GE Fanuc Embedded Systems Inc The employee share
schemes operated by Radstone Technology PLC terminated on that date As a result, at 31 December 2006 the trust had sold all the
shares in the scheme to the acquirer
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31 Notes to the cash flow statement

Group Company
9 months 12 menths 9 mooths 12 months
ended ended ended ended
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2006 2006 2006 2006
£'000 £°000 £000 £7000
(Loss)yprofit from operations (8,1587) 5914 (3,.547) 3,695
Adjustments for
Depreciation of property, plant and
equtpment 1,585 2142 145 194
Amortisation of intangible assets 851 1,074 15 20
EBITDA (5,721) 9,130 (3.387) 3,909
{Profit}/loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment {35) 3 - -
Cost of equity settled employee share
schemes 791 175 175 45
Increase/(decrease) 1n post employment
benefit obligation 168 (25} - -
Cash payments 1o the pension scheme in
excess of the charge to the income statement {657) (710} - -
Operating cash flows before movements
1n worhing capital (5.454) 8,573 (3.212) 3,954
Increase in iventones (4.451) (1,054) - -
Decrease/(increase) tn receivables 11,030 {6 631) (13,493) (3,142)
Ingr decr: n I 1,520 2,386 (1,931) 1,792
Cash generated by operations 2,645 3,274 (18,636) 2,604
Income taves (paud)recovered (518) (524) - 399
Interest paid (i,182) {1,149) (714) (1,162)
Net cash from operating activities 945 1,601 (19,350) 1841
Reconciliation of cash and bank
overdrafts to net debt
Increase/(decrease) 1 cash and bank overdrafis 1,723 {1,444) (9,996) 1,104
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
on cash and bank overdrafts (85) (134) - -
1,638 {§,578) (9.996) 1,104
Cash outflow {rom decrease 1n debt and
lease financing 3,900 1,136 3,446 -
Cash inflow from ncrease in debt and
lease financing (1,965) {1,358) _{8,060) -
Change in net debt ansing from cash flows 3.573 (1,800) (14,610) 1,104
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
on borrowings (254) 130 - 205
Movement n net debt in the period 3319 (1,670) (14,610) 1,309
Net debt at stant of the penod {18,224) (16,554) (7.095) (8.404)
Net debt at end of the pertod (14,305) (18.224) (21,705) (7.095)
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32 Guarantees and other financial commitments

(a) Capital commitments

31 December 31 March
2006 2006
£'000 £'000
Group
Expenditure contracted for but not provided 129 158
Company

Expenditure contracted for but not provided -

(b) Operating lease commitments

Group

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases which expuire as follows

Group
31 December 31 March
2006 2006
£000 £000
Within one year 370 546
Between twoe and five years 1,040 1,232
After five yearg 247 236
____1,657 2,014

The expenditure on operating leases 1s charged to the income statement as incurred and 1s disclosed n note 6

Operating lease paymenis represent rentals payable by the Group for various office properties and vanous items of plant and

machmery The property leases have vanous lease peniods, escalation clauses and renewal nghts

Company

At the balance sheet date, the Company had outstanding commitments for mmimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating teases which expire as follows

31 December 31 March

2006 2006

£000 £7000

Within one year 25 25
Between two and five years 50 75
After five vears . .
73 100

Operating iease payments represent rentals for vanous items of plant and machinery
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33 Retirement Benefit Schemes

In the UK, the Group operates two funded defined benefit pension schemes, the Radstone Pension Fund and the Radstone Executive
Pension Fund, and three defined contnbution schemes

The Group also operates defined contnibution pension schemes for overseas employees

Defined contribution schemes

Group

The UK defined contribution schemes are separate Group Personal Pension Plans provided by The Equrtable Life Assurance
Company Lid and Scotush Widows Ple, and a Grouped Stakeholder Pension Plan with Bank of Scotland [nvestment Service  All
three schemes are voluntary and the Group Personal Pension Plan with Equitable Life was closed to new entrants on tntroduction of
the Stahcholder armangement in Apnl 2002 In recogmiien of a minimum contribution of 3% ot annual satary by the employee, the
Company contributes a further 3% or 442% dependent upon the scheme

Overseas, the Group operates defined contnbution pension schemes for certain of is overseas subsidianes  The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the compantes in independenily administered funds

The total expense recognised tn the income statement of £234,000 (March 2006 £370,000) represents contributions payable to
these schemes by the Group at rates specified n the rules of the schemes

Company

The total expense recognised 1h the income statement of £12,000 (March 2006 £15,000) represents contributions payable 1o the
schemes at rates specified i the rules ot the schemes

Defined benefit schemes

Group

The UK defined benefit (final salary) schemes are funded by comtnbutions from the Group companies and the employees
Contnbutions are paid to the trustees on the basis of advice from independent professicnally quahfied actuaries who carry out a
valuation of each scheme every three years  Both of the defined benefit schemes were closed to new members in 1997

Employees are entitled to start drawing a pension, based on their membership of a scheme, on therr normat retirement date  If
employees choose to retire early and draw their pension, then the amount they receive 1s scaled down accordingly

A full actuanal valuation of both schemes was carried out by a quahfied actuary at 31 March 2004 and updated to 31 December
2006 using the project unit valuation method  The major assumptions used by the actuary were, in nominal terms, for both the
Radstone Pension Fund and the Radstone Executive Pension Fund

At At

31 December 31 March

2006 2006

% %

Dhscount rate 520 500
Expected rate of increase in salares 500 475
Future pension increases 300 275
Inflation rate 300 275
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33 Retirement Benefit Schemes (continued)

Defined benefit schemes {Continued)

Amounts recogmised 1n operating profit in respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows

31 December 31 March

2006 2006

£000 £000

Current service cost 378 506

Of the charge for the period, £91 000 (March 2006 £122,000) has been included in cost of sales, £166,000 (March 2006
£224 000) has been included in development costs, £38,000 (March 2006 £50,000) has been included 1n distnbution costs and

£83,000 (March 2006 £110,000) has been included tn administrative expenses

Amounts charged to finance costs are as follows

9 months ended

12 months ended

31 December 31 March

2006 2006

£000 £:000

- Interest on pension scheme liabilities 1,106 1,366
- Expected return on pension scheme assets (807} (942)
Net cost 299 424

Amounts recogmised in the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense (SORIE)

9 months ended

12 months ended

31 December 31 March

2006 2006

£000 £000

Actual return less expected retumn on pension scheme assets 93) 2471
Changes 1n assumptions underlying present value of scheme liabilities (356) (2,668)
Actuanial losses recogmsed in SORIE (449} (197}

The expected retum on assets has been derived as the weighted average of the expected retums from each of the main assel classes
The expected return for each asset class reflects a combination of histoncal performance analysis, the forward looking views of
financial markets (as suggested by yields available) and the views of invesiments organisations

The cumulative amount of actuanal losses recogmised tn the consolidated statement of recogmsed income and expense 15 £3,037.000
(March 2006 £2,588,000)

The actual retum on scheme assets was £4,156,000 (March 2006 £3,413,000)

The amount included n the balance sheet ansing from the Group's obligations in respect of 1ts defined benefit retirement schemes 1s
as follows

9 months ended 12 months ended

31 December 31 March

2006 2006

£°000 £°000

Fair value of scheme assets 20,789 19,798
Present value of scheme habilities (30,436) (29.277)
Scheme deficit (9,647) {9,479)
Related deferred tax asset 2,894 2,844
Net penston liabulity {6,753) {6,635)
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33 Retirement Benefit Schemes (continued)

Defined benefit schemes (continued)

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obhgations during the pertod were as follows

Service cost
Enterest cost

Actuanal gains and losses
Benefits paid

9 months ended

12 months ended

31 December 31 March

2006 2006

£000 £7000

Present value of obligation at | Apnil 29,277 25,324
378 506

1,106 1,366

Contributions from scheme members 156 220
356 2,668
(837) (807)

Present value of obhigation at 31 December {31 March 30,436 29,277

Movements 1n the fair value of scheme assets dunng the pertod were as follows

% months ended

12 months ended

31 December 31 March
2006 2006
£'000 £7000
Fair value at 1 Apnl 19,798 15,760
Expected return on scheme assets 807 942
Actuanal gains and losses (64) 2471
Employer contributions 929 1,212
Employee contnibutions 156 220
Benefits paid (837) (807)
Eatr value at 31 December/ 31 March 20,789 19,798
The analysis of the scheme assets and the expected rate of retumn at the balance sheet date were as follows
Expected Fair value
return of assets
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2006 2006 2006 2006
% % % %
Equities 650 625 555 350
Bonds 4 50 4125 440 442
Other assets 500 475 0.5 _08%
100.0 1000
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33 Retirement Benefit Schemes (continued)

Defined benefit schemes

The history of expenence adjustments over the past five financial penods 15 as follows

31 December 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2006 2006 2005 2004 2003
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of defined benefit obligations (30,436) (29.277) (25,324) (21,074) (18,993)
Iair value of scheme asgets 20,789 13,798 15,760 14,413 12,145
Scheme deficit (3,647) (9.479) (0,564} {6,661} {6.848)
Expenence adjustments on scheme Labihities
Amount (£7000) 37 27 (2,767) (228) 9
Percentage ot scheme liabilities (%) 10% 019% (10 9%) {1 1% 05%
Expenence adjustments on scheme assets
Amount {£000) (425) 247 387 1,761 (4,123)
Percentage of scheme assets (%) (2 0%} 12 5% 25% 122% (33 9%)

Histonical data for 2003 and 2004 15 as stated under UK GAAP, FRS 17 (Retwrement Benefits)

The estimated amounts of employer contributions expected to be paid to the schemes during the current financial year s £1 5m

Company

As the Company 15 unable to idenufy 1ts share of the underlying assets and habilities of the schemes on a consistent and reasonable
basis, the Company has accounted for the schemes as though they were defined contnbution schemes  Accordingly, the amount
charged to the income statement 1s the contnbutton payable in the penod  The total expense recognised in the income statement
was £86,000 (March 2006 £106,000)

34 Related party transactions

The Group has a related party relationship with 1ts subsidianes and with s directors  Transactions between the Group compantes,
which are related parties, have been ehimnated on consolidation and are not disclosed n this note  Transactions between the
Company and its subsidiaries are disclosed below

The Company undertakes the following transactions with 1ts active subsidiartes
. providing day-to-day funding from its UK banking facilities,
*  levying an annual management charge to cover services provided to members of the Group of £2 6m (March 2006
£4 6m),
e receiving annual dividends totalling £3 3m (March 2006 £3 9m)

There have been no related panty transactions with directors
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35 Ultimate Holding Company

With effect from 28 November 2006, the directors consider the ulumate helding company to be the General Electne Company,
following the acquisition of Radstone Technology PLC by GE Fanuc Embedded Systems, Inc, a subsidary of the General Electnc
Company

GE. Fanuc Embedded Systems, Inc , incorporated 1n the USA, 1s the immediate parent undertzhing of Radstone Technology PLC
and the smallest group to consolidate these financial statements The General Electnic Company, also icorporated in the LISA, 1s the

largest group to consohidate these financial statements

Copies of the Generl Electnc Company s accounts are available from its registered office at 3135 Easton Tumpihe, Faitfield, CT
06828, USA
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